Where everybody matters

Wiltshire Council

# HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE

# MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 25 JUNE 2019 AT KENNET COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE.

#### Present:

Cllr Chuck Berry (Chairman), Cllr Gordon King (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Howard Greenman, Cllr Andy Phillips, Cllr Pip Ridout, Cllr Tom Rounds, Cllr Fred Westmoreland, Cllr Graham Wright and Cllr Mike Hewitt (Substitute)

#### Also Present:

Cllr John Thomson, Deputy Leader

#### 32 Election of chairman 2019-20

Councillor Howard Greenman proposed Cllr Chuck Berry be appointed Chairman of the Health Select Committee for the ensuing municipal year.

There being no other valid nominations, the Democratic Services Officer announced:

Councillor Chuck Berry was elected Chairman for the ensuing municipal year 2019 – 2020.

## 33 Election of vice-chairman 2019-20

Councillor Chuck Berry called for nominations for the position of Vice-Chairman.

Councillor Chuck Berry proposed, subsequently seconded by Councillor Howard Greenman that Councillor Gordon King be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Health Select Committee for the ensuing municipal year.

There being no other nominations, it was announced that:

Councillor Gordon King was elected Vice-Chairman of Health Select Committee for the ensuing municipal year 2019-2020.

## 34 Apologies

Apologies were received from Cllr Mollie Groom, who was substituted by Cllr Mike Hewitt.

## 35 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

## **Resolved:**

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2019 were approved with the following amendment: Diane Gooch represents WSUN (not Healthwatch as recorded in the minutes).

## 36 **Declarations of Interest**

There were no Declarations of Interest.

## 37 Chairman's Announcements

The Chairman made the following announcements

## a. Public health annual report

A link to Public Health's annual report video was to be sent to members of the committee as soon as it is available.

# b. Scrutiny statutory guidance

On 4 June the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee considered the new Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local and Combined Authorities, as published by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government on 8 May 2019.

The key points for improvements were:

- 1. To include Overview and Scrutiny reports in Full Council agenda papers when the relevant issue was originally requested for scrutiny by Full Council;
- 2. To ask the Overview and Scrutiny Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen and relevant Executive Members to explore a potential framework for requiring contractors to engage in Overview and Scrutiny when requested, and report back;
- 3. To advertise democratic meetings in council premises and make greater use of co-opting members to Overview and Scrutiny
- c. CCG Merger

The NHS Long Term Plan sets out an expectation for Integrated Care Systems to be established across sustainability and transformation partnership (STP) geographical footprints. As part of the Integrated Care development, a further expectation that System is strategic by commissioning will typically be undertaken one Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) within that respective Integrated Care System, and that where more than one CCG exists within the Integrated Care System (as in the case of BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire), CCGs are expected to officially merge to become one organisation before April 2021.

In October 2018 BaNES, Swindon and Wiltshire CCGs took a decision to adopt one single management team (with one Chief Executive) across the three organisations, whilst retaining the three separate organisations each with their own Governing Body. The process to establish the single management team is well underway: Tracey Cox was appointed Chief Executive in January 2019 and appointments have been made to the posts of Chief Finance Officer and Director of Nursing. Further appointments to the Executive Team continue.

On 12 June 2019 the three Governing Bodies took one consensus view that there is now a strong case which supports pursuing full CCG merger by April 2020. A detailed application to merge needs to be submitted to NHS England by 30 September 2019.

The option must now be put to each Public Governing Body in order for each Governing Body to approve a decision to pursue an application for merger. Assuming each Governing Body approves the decision, prior to application the CCGs will engage with stakeholders and the GP membership of each CCG will then vote on a final decision to apply for a merger. Due to the timescales, particularly in relation to conducting this stakeholder engagement in advance of the formal application deadline, the following Governing Body meetings will receive the paper:

Wiltshire – Tuesday 25 June

Swindon – Thursday 27 June

BaNES – Thursday 4 July

The proposed recommendations are:

• To pursue merger by April 2020

• To establish an oversight group/Programme Board to steer the programme on behalf of the Boards

• To develop rapidly programme management resource and arrangements with approval of the detail delegated to the Programme Board and approval of the budget delegated to the Chief Executive/Chief Financial Officer in consultation with the Executive Team and Programme Board

• To commence a programme of communication and engagement with an intended start date in early July and to delegate approval of the detailed plan and materials to a group to include a lay member from each CCG

## d. Non-emergency patient transport service in the South West

On June 1st, 2019, Arriva Transport Solutions stopped operating the non-emergency patient transport service in the South West. E-zec Medical Transport was the new provider.

## e. Adult Social Care scorecards

Reporting on Adult Social Care scorecards was to be at the November meeting of the committee alongside a pre-meeting briefing on the scorecards.

## f. Closure of Old Vicarage at Glenside, Salisbury

In May 2019 the Care Quality Commission (CQC) took the immediate action to cancel the registration of three of the care homes on the Glenside site, the Old Vicarage, Limetree and Newton House. These were run by Glenside Manor Healthcare Services Limited, part of Raphael Hospital (since August 2017).

Following this, the decision was made to close the remaining sites. The council worked closely with our partners in the CCG and CQC to ensure that all individuals living at Glenside were found suitable alternatives where they could receive the right support and care. In addition, he majority of people at Glenside were funded by CCGs and Local Authorities from across the country and this was therefore a significant task to ensure that all partners were aware of the issues and able to find alternatives for their patients at short notice.

This was achieved successfully. The CCG and local authority are currently reviewing these events to identify any areas for "lessons learnt".

# g. Public Health to remain provided by councils

On 6 June the LGA announced that the Secretary of State would allow councils to continue to provide public health services, rather than transferring those services to the NHS. <u>https://www.local.gov.uk/about/news/lga-responds-public-health-announcement</u>

## 38 **Public Participation**

There were no members of the public present.

## 39 Forward work programme

The committee was invited to consider its current forward work programme.

The Chair recommended that the agenda for September be reduced to the following items

- Dementia
- Extra care and housing related support service (Cabinet report)
- Green Paper
- Intermediate care bed service (Cabinet report)
- Review of intermediate care bed service
- Wiltshire Safeguarding Adult Board

## • GP recruitment / health staff recruitment and retention

For the January meeting, a pre-meeting briefing on vacancy numbers, willingness of partners to give up their partnerships, and what Wiltshire Council could do.

## • Main contracts

For the November meeting, the Chair suggested a focus upon care contracts to share information on main contracts and their monitoring with the committee.

## • Better Care Fund

For the September meeting, more information on the Better Care Fund, its management and leadership would be brought to committee.

## • Carer support

An update upon the Carers in Wiltshire Joint Strategy 2017-22 for November or January meetings.

## • Dorothy House

To invite representatives of Dorothy House to a pre-meeting briefing to inform the committee of the breadth of the work that Dorothy House undertakes.

## • Shared Live

That committee receive a presentation on Shared Lives at a pre-meeting briefing.

## • Non-emergency patient transport service in the South West

That committee receive an update at November or January meeting on the new provider E-Zec Medical transport.

# 40 Adult Social Care transformation - Phase 2 update

Clare Edgar, Director Adult Social Care Operations, Mental Health and Learning Disabilities and Emma Legg Director Access and Reablement gave an update on Adult Social Care Transformation Phase 2.

The update included a report on Mental Health as agreed by the committee when it considered the executive response to the CAMHS (Children and Adolescents Mental Health Service) task group, on 5 March 2019.

Adult Social Care Transformation Phase 2 was to focus on developing services for individuals with a Learning Disability and Mental Health disorders who require care and support under the Care Act 2014.

#### Resolved:

To receive information on the CCG bed-base review at the September meeting;

To invite officers and Cabinet Member to consider the appointment of the chairman and vice-chairman of the Health Select Committee to the Adult Social Care Performance Board;

To ensure that the CAMHS task group receives information on and considers the Mental Health strategy;

To circulate the Suicide Strategy to members of the Health Select Committee;

To receive information on the implementation of Phase 2 of the Adult Social Care transformation programme towards "completion".

#### 41 <u>SWASFT (South West Ambulance Service Foundation Trust) performance</u> <u>in Wiltshire - annual report</u>

The committee had invited SWASFT to present on; the Trust's estate review, performance and response times.

Paul Birkett-Wendes, County Commander, Wiltshire and BANES

South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and Emma Smith, Interim Head of Urgent Care, NHS Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group reported; a funding uplift, work on reducing demand at source, the absence of plans to change the estate and attainment of Category 1 response time targets.

The debate that followed addressed ambulance stations, access to patient records, confidence in reducing demand and the financial consequences of not achieving reduced demand, the opportunity to rationalise resources across partners, the need for like-for-like comparisons in performance management and use of defibrillators.

#### Resolved

For the CCG and the council to consider efficiency processes and for the outcome of these conversations to be reported to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Health Select Committee.

To receive a performance report from SWASFT in a year's time. It would be hoped that it would be in the same format as the report received today but including clear targets for the different categories

To request that the following information is provided to the committee as soon as available: like for like comparison for April last year split the analysis by geographical locations

#### 42 Places of safety - user feedback update

Lucy Baker, Acting Director Commissioning Director (Maternity, Children and Mental health) Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group gave a verbal update; the full report is expected in July 2019, 185 surveys completed and 13 telephone interviews, 51% of take-up is out-of-area and that the headline finding was that feedback is positive.

#### **Resolved:**

To receive the analysis of the user feedback when available (report expected to be completed at the end of July 2019).

#### 43 Non-elected representation on the Health Select Committee

On 11 June 2018, the committee agreed to annually review the appointment of non-elected representatives.

The debate noted the value of the status quo and the appointment of representatives from the following; Wiltshire & Swindon User Network (WSUN), South Wiltshire Advocacy Network (SWAN), Healthwatch Wiltshire and Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living (WCIL).

The committee was reminded that the Forward Work Plan allows the committee to request additional representation ad hoc.

#### **Resolved:**

1. To agree the following appointments, with each organisation to nominate its representative:

Wiltshire & Swindon User Network (WSUN), South Wiltshire Advocacy Network (SWAN), Healthwatch Wiltshire, and Wiltshire Centre for Independent Living (WCIL) 2. To invite relevant organisations and groups to specific meeting as witnesses and consider, at the Chairman's discretion, allowing them more participation in the meeting (than public participation).

#### 44 Task Group and Programme Boards Representatives Updates

To receive any updates on recent activity for active task groups and from members of the Health Select Committee who have been appointed as overview and scrutiny representatives on programme boards.

## 44a Quality Accounts - update from working group

Cllr Gordon King reported that the Quality Accounts reports had been considered, as detailed in the report, and that generally each would benefit from an executive summary. The report also indicated a number of areas for further consideration by the committee.

#### **Resolved:**

To add the areas for further consideration by the committee to the forward work programme, as listed in the report.

## 45 Forward Work Programme

The Committee agreed to proceed with the Chair's recommendations on managing the agenda as outlined in Item 39.

## **Resolved:**

The agenda for September would comprise; dementia, extra care and housing related support service (Cabinet report), Green Paper, intermediate care bed service (Cabinet report), review of intermediate care bed service and Wiltshire Safeguarding Adult Board.

#### 46 Urgent Items

There were no Urgent Items.

#### 47 Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Health Select Committee was to be 3 September 2019.

# (Duration of meeting: Times Not Specified)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & Members' Services, direct line (01225) 713035, e-mail <u>roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk</u>

This page is intentionally left blank